
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel to 
be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 7 August 2019

TIME: 9.30 am (Member Only Briefing)
10.00 am (Meeting)

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

10.00AM 

1  Welcome and Introductions. 

2  Apologies for absence. 

3  Declarations of Interest. 

4  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 5 June 2019. 

(Pages 1 - 4)

5  Matters arising. 

10.10AM 

6  GP Access 

Dr Jeremy Tankel and Karen Proctor
(Salford Clinical Commissioning Group)

(Pages 5 - 18)

11.00AM 

7  Public engagement and consultation (to follow) 

Claire Connor (Salford Clinical Commissioning Group)

11.45AM 

Public Document Pack



8  Work Programme 2019 / 2020 (Pages 19 - 22)

9  Any other business. 

10  Date and time of future meetings - 

Wednesday, 4 September 2019 10.00am - 12.30pm
Wednesday, 2 October 2019 10.00am - 12.30pm
Wednesday, 6 November 2019 10.00am - 12.30pm
Wednesday, 4 December 2019 10.00am - 12.30pm
January 2020 - No Meeting
Wednesday, 5 February 2020 10.00am - 12.30pm
Wednesday, 4 March 2020 10.00am - 12.30pm
Wednesday, 1 April 2020 10.00am - 12.30pm

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3011
Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: mike.mchugh@salford.gov.uk



1 | P a g e

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL

5 June 2019

Meeting commenced: 10.00 a.m.
“                  ended: 10.51 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Margaret Morris - in the Chair

Councillors Sammie Bellamy, Barbara Bentham, Jim Dawson, Jim 
King, Sophia Linden, Arnold Saunders, Rob Sharpe and John 
Warmisham

CO-OPTED MEMBERS:

J Ahmed Healthwatch Salford

OFFICERS: Peter Brambleby Interim Director of Public Health 

Mike McHugh Senior Democratic Services Advisor 

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

Councillor Margaret Morris welcomed those present to the meeting of the Health and 
Social Care Scrutiny Panel.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Stephen Hesling; and 
Bruce Poole and David Backhouse.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no formal declarations of interest. 

4. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2019 were approved as a correct record.

5. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

6. DENTAL HEALTH IN SALFORD - REPORT OF THE TASK AND FINISH GROUP

Councillor Margaret Morris submitted the final draft report relating to the work that the 
Panel had undertaken in respect of Dental Health in Salford.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 June 2019

2 | P a g e

Discussion took place relating to the recommendations contained within the report - 

5.1. Members noted with concern that Salford has high levels of dental decay and 
that action is required to address the issues.

5.2. Members noted that as a nation we need to do more about the amount of 
sugar we consume and improve our diet to protect our health.

5.3. Members concluded that fluoride reduces tooth decay and can be provided in
various forms not just via water fluoridation.

5.4. Members confirmed that ensuring all our children 0 to 5 are brushing with a 
fluoride toothpaste, increasing application, using the correct dose of fluoride 
toothpaste and arming families with the correct diet advice can reduce the 
rates of tooth decay.

5.5. Members concluded that the reduction of tooth decay has to be a whole health 
economy approach and the transformation programme will support Salford 
with this approach.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the report be approved.

(2) THAT arrangements be made for the report to be considered at a 
future meeting of the Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing Lead Member Briefing.

(3) THAT further information be provided at a future meeting of this 
Panel detailing the number and locations of NHS Dental Practices is Salford.

7. WORK PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT

Discussion took place in respect of the issues to be included on the Work 
Programme for the 2019 / 2020 municipal year.

Councillor Morris confirmed the priority areas for consideration, as follows - 

(i) Engagement of local people and measuring change
(ii) Primary Care Access
(iii) Poverty and its impact on Health

Councillor Morris confirmed that, in relation to the development of the Work 
Programme, she had held discussions with Charlotte Ramsden (Strategic Director for 
People), Anthony Hassall (Chief Accountable Officer - Salford Clinical 
Commissioning Group) and Jacquie Russell (Assistant Director - Strategy & Change)

Further to these discussions, a presentation would be made at a Development 
Session of this Panel to be held on 3 July 2019, at which the Work Programme for 
2019 / 2020 could be finalised.

RESOLVED: THAT the update be noted.

Page 2



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

5 June 2019

3 | P a g e

8. QUALITY ACCOUNT RESPONSES

Councillor Margaret Morris presented details of the responses she had prepared on 
behalf of the Committee to the Quality Accounts for (a) Greater Manchester Mental 
Health NHS Foundation Trust and (b) Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust.

RESOLVED: THAT the responses be approved; and that arrangements be made for 
them to be submitted to the organisations.

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There were no items of any other business.

10. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED: THAT the next meetings of this Panel be held as follows - 

Wednesday 3 July 2019 (Development Session) (10.00 a.m.)
Wednesday 7 August 2019 (10.00 a.m.)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL

7 August 2019

Report of: Karen Proctor
Director of Commissioning, NHS Salford 
CCG

Date of Paper: July 2019

Subject: GP Access

In case of query 
Please contact:

Anna Ganotis
Head of Service Improvement, NHS 
Salford CCG

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)
Children’s and Maternity Services

X Primary Care
Enabling Transformation

Purpose of Paper:                                   

This paper provides the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel with an overview of access 
to appointments in general practice for people who are registered with a Salford GP. This 
includes:

- What is required from a contractual point of view
- What data exists (including what the residents of Salford tell us) to give an understanding 
of GP access in Salford 
- Initiatives that the CCG and individual practices have in place to improve access to 
appointments in general practice
- An overview of some of the risks and challenges to providing good access to GP 
appointments
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



GP Access

1. Executive Summary

Access to appointments at a GP practice is a national challenge. It is frequently raised as 
an issue by the residents of Salford. 

Under nationally negotiated contracts, GP practices are commissioned to provide services 
between 8am and 6:30pm, Monday – Friday and there are additional services 
commissioned nationally and locally to provide access over and above these core opening 
hours. 

Data regarding access in GP practices is limited, but this report highlights some key 
findings from the most recent national GP Patient Survey and a report produced by 
Healthwatch Salford. 

Both individual GP practices and the CCG have introduced a broad range of initiatives 
aimed at improving GP access. Many of the initiatives are focused upon workforce 
developments. There is some evidence via the GP Patient Survey that these are starting to 
work; however, better data will be key to gaining an in-depth understanding. 

This paper highlights some key risks and challenges that the CCG will continue to monitor 
and mitigate where possible. 

2. Context

2.1 GP practices are independent providers that hold NHS contracts to provide primary 
medical services to the population registered with them.

2.2 NHS Salford CCG holds contracts with 44 GP practices. The average GP practice in 
Salford has 6,000 registered patients (range 1,000 – 17,000). Not all patients registered with 
a Salford GP practice will be Salford residents and not all Salford residents will be registered 
with a Salford GP.

2.3 Providing good access to appointments at a GP practice is a challenge across the 
country and members of the public frequently report struggling to obtain an appointment and 
also struggling to get through to their GP practice on the telephone. Demand for 
appointments has been rising and capacity to meet demand has been reduced. The NHS 
Long Term Plan (2019) acknowledges that investment in general practice declined relative to 
the rest of the NHS between 2004 and 2014, while both demand and complexity of patient 
needs were rising. This has contributed to a fall in patient satisfaction and increased 
pressure on staff, which has exacerbated shortages of GPs and practice nurses, who have 
left the profession at a faster rate than it has been possible to replace them. Despite a 
national target to increase the number of GPs by 5,000 between 2014 and 2020, the number 
of full-time GPs was 6% lower in 2018 than in 2015. 

Page 6



2.4 As part of the solution, a national Primary Care Workforce Commission called for a 
broader range of staff to be involved in providing care. Their report, The Future of Primary 
Care Creating Teams for Tomorrow (2015), set out how the talents of the wider workforce 
can be better deployed to meet patients’ needs and to free GPs up to focus on where their 
skills are most needed.

2.5 The GP Forward View (2016) acknowledged a need to help practice teams manage 
their workload in order to meet the needs of patients, adopting and spreading innovations 
that free-up clinical time for care and developing the skills and confidence to lead local 
improvement.

2.6  In Salford, access to primary care is overseen by the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee which, under the new integrated commissioning arrangements, has equal 
representation from the CCG and the Council.

  
3. Contractual Requirements

Core GP Contract

3.1 Nationally negotiated GP contractual regulations specify that core GP opening hours 
are 08:00 – 18:30, Monday to Friday (excluding bank holidays).

Network Contract Directed Enhanced Service (DES)

3.2 In addition to this core contractual requirement, from July 2019, GP practices have 
had the opportunity to sign-up to deliver the Network Contract Directed Enhanced Service 
(DES). One of the requirements of this DES is that networks of GP practices should work 
together to provide additional appointments outside of core contracted hours (extended 
hours) that equate to a minimum of 30 minutes per 1000 registered patients per week. All 44 
Salford GP practices have signed-up to this DES, working across 5 primary care networks 
(PCNs). In total this will provide an additional 158 hours of consultation time per week. Prior 
to July 2019, Salford had 30 GP practices delivering extended hours via a historic DES; so 
there has been an increase in appointments being offered outside of core contractual hours 
since the introduction of the new Network Contract DES.

Salford Wide Extended Access Pilot (SWEAP)

3.3 Locally, NHS Salford CCG has commissioned Salford Primary Care Together 
(SPCT) to provide the Salford Wide Extended Access Pilot (SWEAP) which is commissioned 
to deliver an additional 46,525 primary care appointments per annum. The service operates 
from 5 neighbourhood hubs, providing access to all Salford patients. Hours of operation for 
each hub are Monday - Friday 18:30-20:00 and Saturday - Sunday 09:30-12:30. All 
appointments must be pre-booked via the patient’s own GP practice. One of the intentions 
behind commissioning SWEAP was to provide access to primary care for people who may 
not be able to access a GP during core hours (e.g. working people and children). Monitoring 
data from the service demonstrates that this is the demographic accessing the service. 

3.4 SWEAP is currently commissioned as a pilot and will run until 31st March 2020. 
SPCT have struggled to recruit sufficient clinicians to fully staff the service and so the 
number of appointments provided has not matched the level of appointments commissioned. 
The pilot service has also seen a high proportion of patients not attending their booked 

Page 7



appointments. SPCT has produced an improvement plan to address some of the difficulties 
experienced. The Greater Manchester Collaboration for Leadership in Applied Health 
Research and Care (CLAHRC) has been commissioned to evaluate the service. This will 
include consideration of patient feedback. The evaluation is due in September 2019 and the 
CCG will use the information provided to inform future commissioning decisions. The 
introduction of the Network Contract DES and the extended hours being provided by the 5 
Salford primary care networks will also need to be taken into account to ensure that the 
provision of appointments outside of core contractual hours is coherent and easy for 
members of the public to navigate.

The Salford Standard

3.5 Salford GP practices are also commissioned by the CCG to deliver the requirements 
of the ‘Salford Standard’, which incentivises practices to improve the quality of care against a 
set of quality standards. These standards were informed and developed with patient 
engagement. The Salford Standard has a specific domain dedicated to access.

3.6 As a pre-requisite to being able to sign-up to the Salford Standard, practices are 
required to declare that they provide ‘reasonable access’ as defined by NHS England. 
Requirements include having appointments that are bookable up to four weeks in advance; 
availability of same day appointments where it is clinically appropriate; providing access to 
telephone advice; and a commitment that patients should not have to phone back on 
repeated days to obtain an urgent appointment.    

3.7 In addition to these requirements, in 2019/20 there are two key performance 
indicators (KPIs) in the Salford Standard that relate to access:

3.7.1 ‘Provide appointments for 9% of the registered practice list size per week’ – 
there is evidence that practices offering less than 70 appointments per 1000 
registered patients struggle to meet demand. Deprivation drives higher consultation 
rates and so it has been assumed that there is a need to offer even higher numbers 
of appointments across the city. In 2018/19, 79% of Salford practices achieved this 
KPI.

3.7.2 ‘Audit of waiting times for appointments’ - 
Practices operating a long wait time for routine appointments risk delaying diagnosis 
for serious conditions. Therefore, the aim is for practices to work to reduce the length 
of time that patients wait for an appointment. The target is to reduce the practice 75th 
percentile wait to less than 50 hours. In 2018/19, 23 practices made an improvement 
in their waiting time. For the 41 practices who submitted data, the mean reduced 
from 66.56 hours to 62.89 hours, and the median from 24 hours to 19 hours.  

  

4. Data

4.1 As independent businesses, GP practices currently have no obligation to share 
information in relation to their appointments / waiting time, making it difficult to draw a 
complete picture of GP access across Salford. Investment and evolution: A five-year 
framework for GP contract reform to implement The NHS Long Term Plan (January 2019) 
acknowledges this difficulty and commits to developing a comprehensive dataset which will 
enable the publishing of robust activity and waiting time data at individual practice and PCN 
level no later than 2021. 

Page 8



GP Patient Survey

4.2 The national GP Patient Survey (GPPS) provides a snapshot of patient satisfaction 
with access to appointments in GP surgeries. The GPPS is an England-wide survey 
administered by Ipsos MORI. The most recent data was published in July 2019 and 4,516 
Salford patients completed the survey. 

4.3 Appendix 1 sets out Salford and national performance against some key questions 
that relate to GP access. The data is largely positive and demonstrates an improvement in 
patient experience between 2018 and 2019. There has been a 6% increase in the proportion 
of Salford patients reporting booking appointments online. This reflects the drive across the 
city to promote online registration for services. A second area to note is the improvements 
seen in the proportion of patients agreeing that they were given a choice of appointment. 
This now exceeds the national average and may be reflective of some of the work that the 
CCG has progressed through the Salford Standard, as well as the embedding of the SWEAP 
service. 

4.4 The CCG is now undertaking a full analysis of the 2019 GPPS results and areas for 
improvement, development and support will be identified. Through the 2019/20 Salford 
Standard, practices have been encouraged to triangulate the GPPS data with other sources 
of patient feedback to formulate service improvement plans.

Healthwatch Salford Report

4.5 Acknowledging that GP access has been an issue for people in Salford, Healthwatch 
Salford published ‘Accessing an appointment at a GP surgery in Salford – A report looking 
into the experiences of Salford residents when trying to access appointments at their local 
GP surgeries’ in March 2019. The report documented the experiences of 431 Salford 
patients who were surveyed. 

4.6 Key findings included:
- 55% of respondents reported that their calls to GP surgeries were answered the 
first time (17% of patients had to call 4 times or more)
- 53% of respondents reported being comfortable with discussing the reason for 
making an appointment with the receptionist / call handler (28% left negative 
feedback)
- 58% of respondents said that it was easy to make an appointment (25% said that it 
was difficult) 

4.7 Healthwatch Salford made a set of 8 recommendations for consideration. These 
ranged from explaining to patients why they may be asked some personal information by the 
reception team, to the consideration of implementing telephone triage systems. The CCG 
published a formal response to these recommendations which has been published on the 
Healthwatch Salford website.

 
5. Salford CCG and General Practice Initiatives

5.1 In addition to the ways (described in section 3) in which NHS Salford CCG 
commissions GP practices to provide accessible services, there are a number of initiatives 
which will support local general practice to increase capacity and reduce demand, so that 

Page 9



patients may receive a more prompt and timely service either with their GP or other more 
appropriate service. A number of these initiatives are briefly described below.

5.2 The CCG has recognised that projections for significant population growth in Salford 
have the potential to create further strain on already struggling GP practices. CCG 
colleagues have been working with officers from Salford City Council to obtain a better 
understanding of the projected growth and how that may impact upon the demand for GP 
consultations. This data is due to be shared with GP practices in August so that 
conversations can take place regarding how this increased demand can be best met and 
planned for. Because the largest proportion of projected growth is set to fall in the Ordsall / 
Salford Quays vicinity, a specific piece of work has already begun to commission a two-year 
pilot GP practice, which will target the particular needs of this new population group. This 
new practice is scheduled to start registering patients in September 2019 and will be subject 
to evaluation, including patient feedback, in advance of a decision being made regarding the 
long term future of the service. 

5.3 Delivering primary care to people residing in care homes can be time consuming and 
resource intensive for GP practices. Innovatively, NHS Salford CCG commissions The Care 
Homes Medical Practice which serves the majority of patients who reside in a care home 
located in Salford. The service works in a routine and reactive manner, delivering a regular 
programme of planned visits to all homes and reactive visits as deemed clinically 
appropriate. One of the benefits of this innovative model of care is that it frees up time in 
other Salford GP practices. It is also a better use of clinician time because one visit means 
that they can provide clinical input for all of the residents of the home, rather than only the 
small proportion who are registered with their practice.      

Workforce

5.4 Primary Care Workforce Strategy - Many of the issues in relation to primary care 
recruitment and retention will need to be dealt with at a national and regional level. However, 
the CCG recognises that it has an important role to play in developing a highly skilled, 
flexible workforce and supporting Salford practices to recruit and retain the best primary care 
professionals in the right numbers to meet local needs. In turn, this should improve patient 
experience and access to general practice services. A refreshed Primary Care Workforce 
Strategy was published by the CCG in spring 2019. Development of the strategy was 
informed by information gathered from members of the public during the “Big Health and 
Care Conversation”. The strategy provides ‘an underpinning framework to achieve the vision 
of a multi-disciplinary workforce, built around the needs of a defined population; with the right 
knowledge, skills, values and behaviours to enable primary care transformation at scale and 
pace; and ensure high quality care for the residents of Salford’. The strategy provides a 
comprehensive outline of how NHS Salford CCG will work with partners within primary care 
and across the locality to:

- Strengthen the foundations for primary care workforce development
- Develop primary care as a learning organisation
- Ensure the future supply of GPs, primary care nurses and the wider workforce
- Up-skill the current primary care workforce, including both clinical and non-clinical 
roles
- Develop new roles and new ways of working within the general practice team

Members of the public were supportive of some elements of their care being provided by an 
alternative suitably trained health professional, as well as being positive about more care 
being provided on a neighbourhood basis; these views underpin the strategy.

Page 10



5.5 Neighbourhood Integrated Pharmacists - The neighbourhood integrated 
pharmacists (NIPPS) is a team of 30 (22 whole time equivalent) pharmacists who are based 
in GP practices. The service started via funding from a neighbourhood innovation bid and 
proceeded to a business case for a city wide service that was approved in November 2015. 
It is commissioned from Salford Royal Foundation Trust on a 5 year contract which 
commenced in April 2016. They are commissioned to deliver 7,644 annual sessions to 
Salford practices (excluding Salford Care Homes Practice, as they already have dedicated 
pharmacy staff). The number of patient reviews and other activities has increased 
significantly over the last 6 months. Approximately 25,000 medication reviews were 
undertaken in 2017/18 increasing to 38,687 in 2018/19, thus freeing a significant amount of 
time for GPs and other practice staff and improving medicines safety and effectiveness.

5.6 go2physio – The CCG has commissioned go2physio, whereby patients can self-
refer themselves for musculoskeletal physiotherapy, without the need to visit their GP, thus 
freeing up appointments in general practice and improving patient access to physiotherapy. 
As at February 2019, 74% of patients with musculoskeletal conditions were accessing 
physiotherapy services via this self-referral route. Patients wishing to still initially see their 
GP about a musculaskeletal complaint are still able to do so.

5.7 Social Prescribing – The Wellbeing Matters programme is a test of change funded 
for 2 years via Greater Manchester transformation monies and is led by the voluntary, 
community and social enterprise sector. One of the workstreams is social prescribing; 
whereby there is a ‘community connector’ based in each of the 5 health and social care 
neighbourhood footprints. The community connector takes referrals from healthcare staff 
and works with individuals to understand what matters to them and then identifies 
appropriate activity within the community (both commissioned and non-commissioned) to 
connect the individual with. The offer is person-centred and support is tailored to that 
individual. Feedback on Wellbeing Matters is generally positive and suggestive that this 
programme provides a strong foundation for future development. Formal evaluation is 
underway involving the University of Salford. 

5.8 Workflow Optimisation – Greater Manchester transformation funding has been 
utilised to implement a programme of ‘workflow optimisation’, which comprises of two 
workstreams: Clinical Correspondence and Care Navigation:

5.8.1 Clinical Correspondence involves practice reception staff being trained to 
screen and manage clinical correspondence where appropriate, in line with agreed 
protocols.

5.8.2 Care Navigation provides training to GP reception staff so that they are able 
to sensitively ascertain the nature of a patient’s need in order to explore safe and 
appropriate options for accessing care and support, often outside of the GP surgery. 
This work interfaces closely with the Neighbourhood Community Connectors.

5.9 Primary Care Networks – The introduction of 5 ‘Primary Care Networks’ (PCNs) in 
Salford from July 2019 (as discussed in 3.2) under the Network Contract Directed Enhanced 
Service provides opportunities for groups of neighbouring GP practices to work together and 
share skills and resources to deliver services to patients in a way which may create 
economies of scale. After only one month of operation, the benefits of the PCNs are yet to 
be realised and the Primary Care Commissioning Committee will follow their development 
with interest. 

Page 11



Alternatives to GP Appointments

5.10 Triage – In an attempt to address known issues with obtaining appointments, some 
local GP practices have implemented triage systems to ensure that all patients are seen by 
the most appropriate professional to meet their needs and to avoid unnecessary 
appointments. The Clarendon Surgery operates a telephone triage system, whereby patients 
call up the practice and leave brief details of why they want an appointment. A GP then calls 
them back within the hour for a telephone consultation to offer advice. A face to face 
appointment is booked in with an appropriate medical professional if necessary. This 
approach has resulted in improved patient satisfaction (as evidenced in the national GP 
Practice Survey) and improved morale amongst practice staff.

5.11 Minor Ailment Scheme – Pharmacies in Salford have been commissioned to deliver 
the Minor Ailment Scheme so that residents registered with a Salford GP can visit their 
community pharmacist instead of their GP for advice and if necessary, a supply of 
medication to manage a number of self-treatable health conditions. In 2018/19, there were 
almost 13,000 consultations undertaken as part of the scheme. 54% of patients see reported 
that had they not been able to access the service, they would have contacted their GP 
practice.

5.12 NHS 111 / Out Of Hours – NHS 111 provides telephone advice to members of the 
public and is accessible 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. The service receives 
approximately 4,000 calls per month from Salford residents. Advice on symptoms is also 
available through 111 online. NHS 111 is also the route through which residents can access 
the GP Out of Hours Service, which is provided by Salford Royal Foundation NHS Trust. GP 
out of hours activity is approximately 3,000 contacts per month.   

Appointments

5.13 Virtual Consultations – Face to face appointments are not always necessary or 
wanted by patients and increasingly, GP practices across the country are exploring 
alternative appointment types, including telephone appointments, online / email 
consultations and video appointments. For many patients, particularly 16-25 year olds, digital 
offers are preferable to traditional face to face appointments. Used well, these can help 
alleviate workload challenges facing practices and can help to free-up time for patients with 
more complex problems. Investment and evolution: A five-year framework for GP contract 
reform to implement The NHS Long Term Plan (January 2019) commits that ‘all patients will 
have the right to online and video consultation by April 2021’. In preparation for this, NHS 
Salford CCG is piloting two online consultation systems in a small cohort of volunteer 
practices. The pilot aims to understand what features of online consultation work well for 
practices, with a view to developing a local specification. In addition to alternative 
consultation types, patients are now able to book and cancel appointments online, order 
repeat prescriptions and access some elements of their medical records. This has benefits 
for patients and practices alike.

5.14 Practice Improvement Projects – Both in response to patient feedback and the 
requirements of the Salford Standard, many local practices have undertaken to make 
improvements to their appointment systems. One example is that for a Salford Standard key 
performance indicator in relation to safety improvement in general practice, all of the 
practices in the Broughton neighbourhood have chosen to run an improvement project 

Page 12



around reducing waiting times for routine appointments by April 2020. They have created 
plans to achieve this and will be monitoring progress over the coming months.  

6. Risks and Challenges

6.1 There are a number of risks and challenges inherent in the work to improve access to 
GP practices. Some of them are discussed below.

6.2 Estates – there is a need to ensure that GP practices have fit for purpose, modern 
premises which support the delivery of services. There is also a need to ensure that existing 
estates are utilised efficiently in order to maximise capacity. During 2018/19, the CCG and 
Salford City Council undertook a locality asset review which analysed public sector asset 
ownership across Salford; assessed future needs; and identified opportunities for 
rationalisation and improvement. Six facet surveys were undertaken for all GP premises 
(whether leased, GP or NHS owned) and this revealed that the majority of premises were 
well maintained and fit for purpose, but a number were over recommended capacity. 
Improvement grants are available to all practices to effect allowable improvements. The 
CCG will be visiting all neighbourhoods in August 2019 to share the results of the locality 
asset review and to obtain feedback on future estates requirements; this will feed into a 
refreshed estate strategy. Construction of the new Little Hulton Health Centre will shortly 
commence and will be operational by autumn 2020. Further developments in Lower 
Broughton, Irlam and Cadishead and Walkden are in the pipeline.

6.3 Technology – digital consultations will not be desirable for all population groups and 
there is a need to ensure that people have a choice. However, digital consultations are going 
to be increasingly in demand and it is important that they are embraced by general practice.

6.4 Continuity of Care – Several of the initiatives described may compromise continuity 
of care. We know that many patients value seeing a familiar clinician with whom they have 
built a relationship. However, there is a need to balance continuity with ensuring rapid 
access. Freeing up GPs from the more routine aspects of their work will enable better 
continuity of care for patients who want this or with more complex needs, where this may be 
more vital. Sometimes, new service models will be provided from premises away from 
patients’ own practices and this will require communication and explanation.

6.5 Privacy - One concern highlighted in the Healthwatch Salford report referenced in 
section 4.5 was in relation to privacy. 28% of those surveyed were unhappy with being 
required to state the reason for an appointment with a non-medical professional. The CCG 
supports triaging / signposting people to the most appropriate service / individual, but 
understands the concerns from some. Reception staff have been trained to sensitively ask 
people about their needs. The Healthwatch report highlighted that one local practice had 
identified the issue and recorded an automated message from one of the GPs to be played 
before the phone was answered. The message explained the rationale and the practice have 
reported that this has helped to encourage patients to talk to the receptionist.

6.6 Accountability – As independent organisations, the CCG is limited in its influence 
over access to GP appointments, though does maximise its contractual levers and 
incentives. This paper has highlighted that many GP practices are taking proactive 
measures to improve services and the CCG is supporting a number of initiatives that will 
contribute to improved GP access. Despite this, some practices will inevitably be struggling 
more than others and will have varying degrees of ability to tackle the issue. Having a 

Page 13



standard data set mandated by the national GP contract will be an important first step in 
better being able to understand variation and to provide additional support / hold practices to 
account.

7. Conclusion

7.1 Providing good access to appointments at a GP practice is a challenge across the 
country and this is no different in Salford. 

7.2 Data regarding access in GP practices is limited, but key findings from the most 
recent national GP Patient Survey and a report produced by Healthwatch Salford show that 
it is an issue, but that there are some early signs of improvement. 

7.3 Many Salford GP practices are taking proactive measures to improve services and 
the CCG is supporting a number of initiatives that will contribute to improved GP access. 
Having a standard data set mandated by the national GP contract will be an important first 
step in better being able to understand variation and to provide additional support / hold 
practices to account.

Name (Author) Anna Ganotis
Job Title Head of Service Improvement

Page 14



Question 2018 - CCG 2018 - National Average 2019 - CCG 2019 - National Average Narrative

Q31 - Overall Experience. Patients rating 

their practice as 'Good'.

84 84 86 83

The CCG's position has improved, in 

comparison to the national average which 

has declined. The CCG now exceeds the 

national average.

Q1 - Ease of getting through to GP practice 

on the phone. Patients rating their practice 

as 'Good'.
68 70 69 68

The CCG's position has improved, in 

comparison to the national average which 

has declined. The CCG now exceeds the 

national average.

Q5 - Online service use. Which of the 

following general practice online services 

have you used in the past 12 months? 

Booked an appointment online. 
11 13 17 15

The CCG's position has improved, so has the 

national average. The CCG now exceeds the 

national average.

Q6 - Ease of use of online services. How easy 

is it to use your GP practice’s website to 

look for information or access services?  

Responses based on those who said 'Easy'.
73 78 76 77

The CCG's position has improved, in 

comparison to the national average which 

has declined. The CCG remains lower than 

the national average.

Q16 - On this occasion (when you last tried 

to make a general practice appointment), 

were you offered a choice of appointment? 

Responses based on those who said 'Yes'.

60 62 65 62

The CCG's position has improved, whereas 

the national average has remained the same. 

The CCG now exceeds the national average.

Q17 - Were you satisfied with the type of 

appointment (or appointments) you were 

offered? Responses based on those who 

said 'Yes'. 72 74 74 74

The CCG's position has improved, whereas 

the national average has remained the same. 

The CCG is now in line with the national 

average.

Q22 - Overall, how would you describe your 

experience of making an appointment?

Responses based on those who said 'Yes'.

67 69 71 67

The CCG's position has improved, in 

comparison the national average has 

declined. The CCG now exceeds the national 

average.

P
age 15



Q48 - Overall, how would you describe your 

last experience of NHS services when you 

wanted to see a GP but your GP practice 

was closed?

Responses based on those who said 'Yes'.
68 69 71 69

The CCG's position has improved, whereas 

the national average has remained the same. 

The CCG now exceeds the national average.

P
age 16



Appendix 1 - GP Patient Survey Results 2019

68% 69% 70% 68% 

0% 

20% 

40% 

60% 

80% 

100% 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Salford National 

Ease of getting through to GP practice on the phone. Patients 
rating their practice as 'Good'. 

Source: GP Patient Survey  

73% 76% 78% 77% 

0% 

20% 

40% 

60% 

80% 

100% 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Salford National 

Ease of use of online services. How easy is it to use your GP 
practice’s website to look for information or access services?  

Responses based on those who said 'Easy'. 
Source: GP Patient Survey 

72% 74% 74% 74% 

0% 

20% 

40% 

60% 

80% 

100% 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Salford National 

Were you satisfied with the type of appointment (or 
appointments) you were offered? Responses based on those who 

said 'Yes' 
Source: GP Patient Survey  

Page 17



11% 
17% 13% 15% 

0% 

20% 

40% 

60% 

80% 

100% 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Salford National 

Online service use. Which of the following general practice online 
services have you used in the past 12 months? Booked an 

appointment online.  
Source: GP Patient Survey 

60% 65% 62% 62% 

0% 

20% 

40% 

60% 

80% 

100% 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Salford National 

On this occasion (when you last tried to make a general practice 
appointment), were you offered a choice of appointment? 

Responses based on those who said 'Yes' 
Source: GP Patient Survey  

67% 71% 69% 67% 

0% 

20% 

40% 

60% 

80% 

100% 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Salford National 

Overall, how would you describe your experience of making an 
appointment? 

Responses based on those who said 'Yes' 
Source: GP Patient Survey 

Page 18



1 | P a g e

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker

2019 / 2020
Updated July 2019

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

August 2019  Public engagement and 
consultation

 Primary Care Access – 
standards and equality

Claire Connor, CCG
AD Engagement and 
Inclusion

Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

Retrospective scrutiny of annual reports of public 
engagement by Salford CCG and Salford Healthwatch.

Overview report on the Salford Standard and local 
variance.

September 2019  Salford Locality Plan 
refresh

 Dentistry provision

 All Age Carers Strategy

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Peter Brambleby, 
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Paul Walsh / Ann 
Brooking

Shaping the policy development and pre-decision 
review of emerging refresh.

Existing requested agenda item.

Scrutiny of Strategy prior to formal approval.

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8



2 | P a g e

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

October 2019  Poverty and its impact on 
health 

 Out of area placements for 
younger adults  

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Judd Skelton, Claire 
Mayo, Kerry Thornley, 
Integrated 
Commissioning SCC / 
CCG

Policy development task and finish scrutiny with 
potential to influence refresh of Salford Anti-Poverty 
Strategy and Locality Plan. 

Overview on commissioning arrangements and issues.

November 2019  Salford Locality Plan 
refresh

 GM Improving Specialised 
Care Programme

Peter Brambleby
Interim Director of 
Public Health

Karen Proctor, CCG 
Director of 
Commissioning

Review of progress of refresh.

Update on current proposals and scrutiny of likely 
impact on SRFT services to local people.

December 2019  Salford Domiciliary care – 
standards and quality

 Adult social care 
performance framework

Mark Albiston SRFT / 
Paul Walsh SCC

Mark Albiston SRFT/ 
Judd Skelton / Paul 
Walsh SCC / CCG

Overview of care home standards.

Scrutiny of the improvement agenda.

January 2020  Supported Employment for 
vulnerable adults

 Mental Health All Age 
Commissioning Strategy

Alison Burnett, Skills 
and Work SCC / Claire 
Mayor and Kerry 
Thornley CCG / SCC

Judd Skelton
AD Integrated  
Commissioning Adults

Update on progress against action plan.

Scrutiny of first year of operation.

P
age 20



3 | P a g e

Meeting date Item for consideration Lead Officer to 
present papers

Type of scrutiny 

February 2020 

March 2020  Scrutiny Panel to identify emerging issues in Forward 
Look.

April 2020  Adult social care 
performance framework

Mark Albiston SRFT / 
Judd Skelton, Paul 
Walsh SCC, CCG

Scrutiny of the improvement agenda. 

May 2020  Scrutiny Panel to identify emerging issues in Forward 
Look.

June 2020  Salford Locality Plan DPH Mid year review of progress against the plan.

July 2020  Scrutiny Panel to identify emerging issues in Forward 
Look.

Abeyance List
The following issues have yet to be prioritised and TOR determined.

P
age 21



4 | P a g e

Portfolio of the Panel: Membership – 12 Members:

1. Health, Public Health and Social Care Integration and 
performance thereafter
2.  Commissioning Hub
3.  Major Health reconfiguration
4. Overview of Health and Wellbeing Board in promoting 
integration
5.  Supporting People
6. Services for independent living – care on call, sheltered 
housing, supported tenancies
7. Adult Safeguarding
8. Integrated Teams
9. Provider Services
10. Personalisation and care management
11. Asylum Seekers and Refugees
12. Welfare rights and debt advice
13. To review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning 
provision and operation of the health service in the Salford area.
14. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area

Councillors

 Saunders
 1 Conservative Vacancy
 1 Labour Vacancy
 Bellamy (VC)
 Bentham 
 Brooks
 Dawson
 Hesling
 King
 Linden
 Morris (C)
 Warmisham

J Ahmed - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
David Backhouse - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
Bruce Poole - Co-opted Member (Salford CVS)

P
age 22


	Agenda
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2019.
	6 GP Access
	Appendix 1 - GPPS Results

	8 Work Programme 2019 / 2020

